#### IN THE COUNTY COMMISSION OF WOOD COUNTY, WEST VIRGINIA

IN RE: MINUTES OF MEETING HELD THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2005

PRESENT: GARY D. DEEM, PRESIDENT

ROBERT K. TEBAY, COMMISSIONER RICK MODESITT, COMMISSIONER

At 9:30 A.M., the County Commission of Wood County met in regular session. They signed purchase orders, invoices and other correspondence.

The County Commission, upon a motion duly made, seconded and passed, approved Erroneous Assessment Applications in regard to real property for Bill L. Boss – Tygart District (2005); Sherman Dils IV – Parkersburg City District (2005); Town Square LLC – Parkersburg City District (2005); Federal Home Loan Mortgage – Union District (2005) and Jacqueline Shively – Williamstown District (2005).

The County Commission, upon a motion duly made, seconded and passed, approved Erroneous Assessment Applications in regard to personal property for Eric E. Brown – Parkersburg City District (2004); Goff's Nursery & Garden Center – Lubeck District (2005); Jack L. Blair – Vienna District (2005); Brian J. Brady – Vienna District (2005); Jackson E. Seabolt – Parkersburg City District (2005) and John Safstrom – Lubeck District (2005).

The County Commission, upon a motion made by Rick Modesitt, seconded by Gary D. Deem and made unanimous by Robert K. Tebay, approved minutes of July 18, 2005.

The County Commission of Wood County, upon a motion made by Rick Modesitt, seconded by Robert K. Tebay and passed, did hereby AUTHORIZE Gary D. Deem, in his official capacity as President and on behalf of the County Commission, to EXECUTE the Request for Reimbursement in regard to the Enforcing the Underage Drinking Laws Program

Grant Number 05-UD-016. Expenditures in the amount of two thousand two hundred twenty-five dollars and 33/100ths cents (\$2,225.33) were incurred during the month of August, 2005 of which the amount of two thousand two hundred fourteen dollars and 00/100ths cents (\$2,214.00) represents reimbursement for contractual services provided by Kelly C. Shook, Project S.O.B.E.R (Services, Observation, Behavior Modification, Education and Rehabilitation) Coordinator; the amount of eleven dollars and thirty-three cents (\$11.33) represents reimbursement for "buy money" used by the Vienna Police Department to conduct compliance checks. In addition to the Request for Reimbursement; the Project Director's Monthly Report; the Financial Recap; the Daily Time Records of the Program Director, Kelly Shook; the Monthly Supervisor's Report; the Project Financial Report; and the Demographic Reports are being submitted to the Division of Criminal Justice Services, Charleston, West Virginia. Documentation pertaining to the Enforcing the Underage Drinking Laws Program Grant is on file in the Office of the County Administrator. An Order was prepared regarding this matter.

The County Commission of Wood County, upon a motion made by Robert K. Tebay, seconded by Rick Modesitt and passed, did hereby AUTHORIZE Gary D. Deem, in his official capacity as President and on behalf of the County Commission, to sign the Request for Reimbursement in regard to the West Virginia Community Corrections Revenue Grant Number 06-CCF-64. Expenditures in the amount of eleven thousand three hundred eighty-four dollars and seventy-eight cents (\$11,384.78) were incurred by Wood County during the month of August, 2005. However, the Request for Reimbursement is in the amount of six thousand eight hundred sixteen dollars and ninety-two cents (\$6,816.92) which represents payment of contractual services provided by Carrie Atkinson, Part-Time Assistant; payment of contractual

services provided by Hernando Escandon, Counselor; payment of contractual services provided by Tim Underwood, Part-Time Counselor; payment of contractual services provided by Erin Lentz, Part-Time Case Manager. The amount of four thousand five hundred sixty-seven dollars and eighty-six cents (\$4,567.86) represents the cash match as set forth in the aforementioned Grant and represents the salary and benefits provided by Wood County to the Community Corrections Director. In addition to the Request for Reimbursement; the Monthly Reports; the Financial Recap; the Daily Time Records for the Part-Time Assistant, the Community Corrections Director, the Counselor, the Part Time Case Manager, and the Part-Time Counselor; the Monthly Progress Reports; the Monthly Summary of Activity of the Wood County Day Report Center; and the Project Financial Report are being submitted to the Division of Criminal Justice Services Office in Charleston, West Virginia. Documentation pertaining to the West Virginia Community Corrections Revenue Grant is on file in the Office of the County Administrator. An Order was prepared regarding this matter.

At 9:42 A.M., the County Commission met with Ginny Conley, Prosecuting Attorney, to discuss the Freedom of Information request from Walt Auvil. Ms. Conley said the request is in regard to the Paula Lathem case; there are five boxes of files; she needs to go through the personnel files and internal memos between attorney and County Commission. Ms. Conley asked if this was something the Commission wanted her to handle of let Blaine Myers or the insurance company's attorney handle. The County Commission agreed to let Ms. Conley handle the request and she will also talk to Paula Lathem's attorney.

At 10:04 A.M., the County Commission met with Carrie Brainard from the Mid-Ohio Valley Health Department to discuss the Clean Air Regulations for Wood County. Ms. Brainard gave the Commission a copy of the Clean Indoor Air Regulation and stated it will be

going into effect October 1, 2005. After discussion, Ms. Brainard stated that if the Commission is asked questions, they can refer them to the Health Department.

The 10:30 A.M. appointment with Dale Thorn to discuss dilapidated/abandoned property on Route 47 was cancelled.

At 11:00 A.M., the County Commission met with Nevin Sheppard for an interview for the Parks and Recreation Commission (Mountwood Park).

At 11:15 A.M., the County Commission met with Joy Miracle to discuss dilapidated/abandoned property on Blenn Lake Road. Ms. Miracle stated that the yard is cleaned up and trees down; she has siding to put on; doors are locked and windows closed; the house is not livable without cleanup and the tires belong to the neighbors. After discussion, the County Commission of Wood County, upon a motion made by Robert K. Tebay, seconded by Rick Modesitt and made unanimous by Gary D. Deem, did hereby ORDER an extension of time for the clean up of property owned by Rickie and Joy Miracle located at 3309 Third Avenue, Parkersburg, Wood County, West Virginia. The said County Commission did hereby APPROVE an additional forty-five (45) days with inspection in thirty (30) days by the County's Compliance Officer, Edward H. Hupp. Mr. Hupp is to submit a list of items that need to be completed in this time frame. An Order was prepared regarding this matter.

At 11:47 A.M., the County Commission met with Clint Pifer from the Floyd Browne Group to discuss Fort Boreman Historic Park. Mr. Pifer gave the Commission a copy of the Overall Pricing for the Fort Boreman Historic Park (a copy is attached to these minutes). They discussed the handicap ramp to the fort – whether or not it is feasible; the restrooms, a concrete slab, etc. Clint will check on some things and come back on Monday to discuss further.

At this time, the County Commission finished the items from 9:30 A.M.

On this date, the County Commission of Wood County, upon a motion made by Rick Modesitt, seconded by Robert K. Tebay and made unanimous by Gary D. Deem, placed Carla Reed and Nevin Sheppard in nomination to fill vacancies that exist on the Wood County Parks and Recreation Commission (Mountwood Park). Said vacancies are due to the resignations of Kim Broughton and Norman Harris and is further pursuant to an Order appearing in Order Book 51, at Page 433 and bearing the date of April 1, 1991, dealing with the procedure policy for appointments to Boards and Authorities. The terms will expire December 16, 2006 and December 16, 2007, respectively. An Order was prepared regarding this matter.

The County Commission of Wood County, upon a motion made by Rick Modesitt, seconded by Gary D. Deem and made unanimous by Robert K. Tebay, did hereby give permission to United Brokerage Services, Inc. to present a 401-K proposal to the employees of Wood County. An Order was prepared regarding this matter.

The County Commission of Wood County, upon a motion made by Rick Modesitt, seconded by Robert K. Tebay and made unanimous by Gary D. Deem, appointed Marty Seufer to the Way Finding Committee. This Committee will be working with the Wood County Development Authority (Area Roundtable) to find and discuss signage options. There is no term expiration. An Order was prepared regarding this matter.

The County Commission of Wood County, upon a motion made by Rick Modesitt, seconded by Gary D. Deem and made unanimous by Robert K. Tebay, referred the Unemployment Compensation Form in regard to Shirley Yoho, former County employee, to Blaine C. Myers, Attorney, to see if they can appeal her request for unemployment. An Order was prepared regarding this matter.

The County Commission of Wood County, upon a motion made by Rick Modesitt, seconded by Robert K. Tebay and made unanimous by Gary D. Deem, ORDERED that they will be accepting resumes from any interested County employee for the position of County Administrator. Resumes must be submitted by September 23, 2005. An Order was prepared regarding this matter.

The County Commission of Wood County, upon a motion made by Rick Modesitt, seconded by Robert K. Tebay and made unanimous by Gary D. Deem, ORDERED that the new flagpole in front of the Central Telecommunications Center be dedicated as a memorial to Carol Cottrill for her many years of public service. An Order was prepared regarding this matter.

Having no further scheduled appointments or business to attend to, the County Commission, upon a motion made by Robert K. Tebay, seconded by Rick Modesitt and made unanimous by Gary D. Deem, adjourned at 2:15 P.M.

APPROVED:

THE COUNTY COMMISSION OF WOOD COUNTY

Gary D. Deern, President

Robert K. Tebay, Commissioner

Rick Modesitt, Commissioner

To listen to this meeting, please refer to Tape \$486, #487 and #488.

### Wood County Commission Meeting Held September **3**, 2005

### **Please Print**

1. Ginny Conley - Prosecuting Attorney
1. Ginny Conley - Prosecuting Attorney 2. Carrie Brainard - MOVHD 3. Nevin Sheppard BB+T 4. CLIHT PIFER - FLOOD BROWHE GROUP 11:35 XM
3. Nevin Sheppard- BB+T
4. CLIHT PIPER - FLOYD TROWHE GROUP 11:35 AM
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.



September 7, 2005

Mary Rader **County Administrator Wood County Commission** 

RE: Fort Boreman Historical Park

Overall Pricing Breeakdown

Base Bid at Bid Opening: \$1,327,000.00 Deduct Alternate #3 (overlook): \$87,000.00 Deduct Alternate #4 (restroom): \$197,000.00 \$1,043,000.00 Original Contract Sum:

Adding Deduct Alternate #3 Overlook: +\$87,000.00 New Contract Sum: \$1,130,000.00

**Project Credits:** 

Deleting Deduct Alternate #5: -\$5,700.00 Site Work Credits: <u>-\$30,737.42</u> **Total Credits to Date:** -\$36,437.42

Contract Sum with Credits: \$1,093,562.60

Potential Additional Credits

Removal of ramp to Fort: -\$42,000.00 Restroom Value Engineering: -\$17,118.90

Restroom Additions

Floor Foundation and Slab Additional: +\$67,000.00

Sincerely,

FLOYD BROWNE GROUP

Clinton L. Pifer, ASLA Project Manager

1107 Ninth Street ₩ Vienna, WV 26105 ₩ 304.295.9304 ₩ fax: 304.295.9305

www.flovdbrowne.com



September 7, 2005

Mark Husk JC Bosley Construction Inc. PO Box 67 Mineral Wells, WV 26150

RE:

Fort Boreman Historical Park

Stone Selection

#### Dear Mark:

I am in receipt of your request for extension to the contract completion date and have the following comments:

After reviewing the Weather Underground web site information and your memorandum, I see that you are requesting a one-hundred-seventy-five (175) day time extension to the project making the "substantial completion" date of November 25, 2005. Based upon the information provided, I cannot recommend granting you the entire one-hundred-seventy-five days to the Wood County Commission. I will recommend granting one-hundred-eleven (111) days based upon the weather information provided. This will make the "substantial completion" date September 22, 2005. This does not include any extensions that will be granted if the restroom facility or portions of the facility are included in the project. This will also not include any additional time required with the ramp/path from the restroom area to the fort site.

Sincerely,

Floyd Browne Group

Clinton L. Pifer, ASLA

**Project Manager** 

cc: Mary Rader, County Administrator

# BOSLEY CONSTRUCTION, INC.

P. O. Box 67 Mineral Wells, WV 26150



(304) 422-0025 FAX: (304) 422-0414

"The Tank Specialists"

August 29,2005

Attn: Clint Environmental Design Group 1107 9th St. Vienna, WV 26105

Dear Clint,

I would like to request a change order to add the rest room foundations and floor slab to our contract. The additional cost is \$ 67,000.00 to perform the following items:

Foundations
Foundation walls
Floor slab w/ ballest
Sanitary sewer rough in (below grade)
Utilities turned up at building wall
Electric panel to be mounted on a pipe stand

This price excludes: Any work above finish floor slab

I also need to have an additional 40 day time extension to perform this change order.

Respectfully,

Mark Husk Project Coordinator

MAH/tnb

# BOSLEY CONSTRUCTION, INC.

. 0. Box 67 // fineral Wells, WV 26150



(304) 422-0025 FAX: (304) 422-0414

"The Tank Specialists"

August 1,2005

Attn: Clint Environmental Design Group 1107 9<sup>th</sup> St. Vienna, WV 26105

Dear Clint,

As per your request our price to deduct the ramp would be \$ 42,000.00. Please review and advise me of your intentions on this matter.

Respectfully,

Mark Husk

Project Coordinator

of the same of the

# Mid Ohio Valley Health Department CLEAN INDOOR AIR REGULATION

#### TITLE

This Regulation shall be known as the Mid-Ohio Valley Health Department Clean Indoor Air Regulation covering the counties of Calhoun, Pleasants, Ritchie, Roane, Wirt and Wood.

#### **FINDINGS and PURPOSE**

The United States Surgeon General has determined that involuntary inhalation of tobacco smoke is (a) a cause of numerous diseases in health of nonsmokers' and (b) a major contributor to indoor air pollution; and (c) that children, elderly people, and individuals with cardiovascular and/or respiratory diseases are at special risk.

The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has classified secondhand smoke as a Group A Carcinogen, known to cause cancer in humans. Accordingly, the Mid Ohio Valley Board of Health finds and declares that the purpose of this Regulation is to (1) protect the public health and welfare by prohibiting smoking in enclosed public places and by regulating smoking in places of employment and (2) recognize that where the need to breathe smoke-free air conflicts with the desire to smoke, the need to breathe smoke-free air shall have priority.

In attempting to minimize the effects of tobacco smoke on the general public in enclosed public places, the regulations of [boards of health] address a serious health issue which the Legislature has recognized.... Based upon the foregoing observations, we find that clean indoor air regulations of local boards of health that place restrictions on smoking in enclosed public places (1) are consistent with the findings of the Legislature "that smoking may cause lung cancer, heart disease, emphysema and other serious health problems," (2) advance the legislatively prescribed public policy "to provide the state with a citizenry free from the use of tobacco," and (3) fall within the bounds of authority granted by the Legislature to such boards....." Excerpted from the December 2, 2003 WV Supreme Court Decision #31120.

#### **DEFINITIONS**

The following words and phrases, whenever used in this regulation, shall be construed as defined in this section.

A. "Bar" means any establishment that is primarily devoted to the serving of alcoholic beverages for consumption by guests on the premises and in which the serving of food is only incidental to the consumption of such beverages. A "bar" for the purposes of this definition has fifty percent (50%) or greater of total sales in alcoholic beverages and does not ever allow entry of customers under the age of 18 years. A "bar" for the purpose of this definition does not include any establishment where tobacco smoke can filter into any area where smoking is prohibited, through a passageway, ventilation system, or any other means.

B. "Business" means any entity formed for profit-making purposes.

- C "Employee" means any person employed for direct and indirect monetary wages or anything of value, or any person who volunteers for a non-profit entity.
- D. "Employer" means any entity including a municipal corporation, or non-profit entity that employs the paid or volunteer services of one or more persons.
- E. "Enclosed Area" means all space between a floor and ceiling which is enclosed on all sides by walls or windows including doors or passage ways. The "enclosed" area extends from the floor to the ceiling.
- F. "Fraternal Organization" is a private club that allows entry for dues paying members and their guests. Fraternal Organizations for the purpose of this regulation will follow the guidelines of a bar/restaurant.
- F. "Free Standing Video Lottery Room" means a room that is devoted to the placement of video lottery machines licensed by the WV Gaming Commission. It has solid walls or windows, enclosed on all sides and is served by a separate ventilation system that does not allow for the infiltration of secondhand smoke into any non smoking area.
- G. "Grocery Store" means any supermarket, convenience store, and other retail food production and marketing establishments.
- H. "Place of Employment" means any enclosed area under the control of a public or private employer whose employees normally frequent this area during the course of employment.
- I. "Enclosed Public Place" means any enclosed area to which the public is invited or in which the public is permitted. A private residence is not a "public place."
- J. "Restaurant" means any establishment that serves food to the public, guests, patrons, and employees as well as kitchens in which food is prepared on the premises for serving elsewhere, including catering facilities.
- K. "Retail Store" means any establishment that sells goods or services directly to members of the general public including, but not limited to, specialty stores, department stores, pharmacies, banks, automobile dealerships, showrooms, professional offices, service stations, repair or maintenance stores, barber or beauty shops, cleaners, and laundromats.
- L. "Retail Tobacco Store" means a retail store utilized primarily for the sale of tobacco products and in which the sale of other products is merely incidental. It is a facility that does not possess a food service permit.
- M. "Smoking" means inhaling, exhaling, burning or carrying any lighted cigar, cigarette, pipe, plant or other smoking equipment in any manner or in any form.
- N. "Separate Ventilation" means ventilation equipment sized and installed to produce sufficient negative air pressure to effectively move air from the smoking area to the outside as proven by a "smoke test".
- P. "Smoke Test" is the visual detection of the movement of a column of smoke produced anywhere within the smoking area to the outside environment.

#### APPLICATION OF ARTICLE TO COUNTY-OWNED FACILITIES

All enclosed facilities including buildings and vehicles owned by the counties or municipalities covered in this regulation or any agency that receives any monetary support from the counties or municipalities covered in this regulation shall be subject to the provisions of this article.

#### REGULATION OF SMOKING IN ENCLOSED PUBLIC PLACES

Smoking shall be prohibited in all enclosed public places within Calhoun, Pleasants, Ritchie, Roane, Wirt and Wood Counties, including, but not limited to the following places:

**Grocery Stores and Convenience Stores** 

**Retail Stores** 

Elevators

Stairwells

Restrooms

All means of public transit, including ticket, boarding and waiting areas
All waiting areas and lobbies in all business and non-profit entities
Restaurants, except that they may designate a contiguous area up to twenty-five
percent (25%) of the seating capacity of the restaurant as a "smoking area",
Such areas shall be enclosed floor to ceiling with separate ventilation between
smoking and no smoking areas, and automatic closing doors which must remain
closed except during entrance and egress. NOTE: As of 10/1/2008, no "smoking
areas" will be allowed in restaurants and all such establishments in the six
counties covered by the Mid-Ohio Valley Health Department will be 100%
smoke free.

Every room, chamber, place of meeting or public assembly, including school buildings under the control of any board, council, commission, committee, including joint committees, or any subdivision of the State during such time as a public meeting is in progress

All patient rooms, waiting rooms, and other public areas in health care facilities, including but not limited to hospitals, clinics, pharmacies, primary care facilities, physical therapy facilities, doctors' offices, dentists' offices, and optometrists' offices Enclosed shopping malls

Bowling Alleys, unless a portion of the bowling alley falls under the exemption allowed a restaurant.

Polling Places

All Fire Department Facilities

Child Care and Adult Day Care Facilities

**Private Schools** 

Galleries, libraries and museums

Any facility which is primarily used for exhibiting any motion picture, stage, drama, lecture, musical recital or similar performance

**Auction Houses** 

Lobbies, hallways, and other common areas in apartment buildings, condominiums, trailer parks, retirement facilities, nursing homes, and other multiple-unit residential facilities.

Private offices in places of employment

Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, any person who controls any establishment or facility described in this section may declare that entire establishment or facility as non-smoking.

In any dispute arising under this Regulation, the concerns of the non-smoker shall be given precedence.

#### REGULATIONS OF SMOKING IN ENCLOSED PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT

- A. It shall be the responsibility of the employers to provide a smoke-free workplace for all employees.
- B. Within 90 days of the effective date of this article, each employer having an enclosed place of employment located within Calhoun, Pleasants, Ritchie, Roane, Wirt and Wood Counties shall adopt, implement, make known and maintain a written smoking policy.
- C. The smoking policy shall be communicated to all employees within three (3) weeks of its adoption.
- D. All employers shall supply a written copy of the smoking policy upon request to any existing or prospective employee.
- E. Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, every employer shall have the right to designate any place of employment, or any portion thereof, as a no smoking area.

#### REASONABLE DISTANCE

Designated smoking areas shall occur at a reasonable distance of 15 feet or more outside any entrance, exit, or ventilation units of any buildings or enclosed area where smoking is prohibited to insure that tobacco smoke does not enter the area through entrances, windows, ventilation systems or any other means. This shall include fresh air intake area for the heating, ventilation, air-conditioning (HVAC) system of any building.

#### **EXEMPTION TO SMOKE-FREE REGULATIONS**

Restaurants which permit smoking shall provide a floor to ceiling enclosed area with separate ventilation between smoking and no smoking areas, and automatic closing doors. The minimum fresh air exchange rate shall be no less than twelve (12) times per hour. Tobacco smoke may not filter into any area where smoking is prohibited, through a passageway, ventilation system, or any other means. The decision to build a "smoking room" must be communicated to the Mid Ohio Valley Health Department Environmental Health Services Department before implementation. The separately ventilated area must pass a "smoke test" before put into use and must be verified in writing by a licensed HVAC installer and such documentation provided to the MOVHD.

NOTE: As of 10/1/2008, no smoking areas will be allowed in restaurants and all such establishments in the six counties covered by the Mid-Ohio Valley Health Department will be 100% smoke free.

#### WHERE SMOKING IS NOT REGULATED

A. Not withstanding any other provisions of this Regulation to the contrary, the following areas shall not be subject to the smoking restrictions of this Regulation:

- 1. "Bars", until 10/1/2008.
- 2. "Free Standing Video Lottery Rooms", until 10/1/2008.
- 3. Private residences, except when used as a child care or health care facility.
  - 4. Designated Hotel and Motel rooms rented to guests.
  - 5. Bingo Halls
  - 6. Retail tobacco stores which do not possess a food service permit.
- 7. The conference or meeting rooms or public and private assembly rooms of hotels, motels and fraternal organizations while these places are being used for private functions.
- B. Not withstanding any other provisions of this section, any person who controls any establishment described in this section may declare that establishment as a non-smoking facility.
- C. Newly constructed establishments or those acquired by a change of ownership, going into business after the effective date of this regulation shall be smoke-free facilities.
- D. As of **10/1/2008**, "bars", "restaurants" and "free-standing video lottery rooms" will also be 100% smoke-free and will be subject to the smoking restrictions of this Regulation.

#### **POSTING OF SIGNS**

- A. Because rules regulating smoking are primarily self-enforcing, their success depends heavily upon adequate signs.
- B. The owner, operator, manager or other person having control of a building or other place covered by this Regulation shall post conspicuous "No Smoking" signs in every place
- C. Every establishment where smoking is controlled by this regulation shall have posted at each entrance a conspicuous sign stating that smoking is prohibited.
- D. Facilities that permit smoking must post signs at every smoking area entrance that read:

Health Warning
Smoking is permitted within this area,
You will be exposed to secondhand smoke.
Such exposure can cause or contribute to
cancer, heart disease, respiratory illness, and
other serious health problems.
No one under the age of 18 is permitted.

The lettering of such signage must be bold and at least one (1) inch in height and one-quarter (1/4) of an inch in width with the heading at least two (2) inches in height and three-eights (3/8) of an inch in width.

E. All ashtrays and other smoking paraphernalia shall be removed from any area where smoking is prohibited by this regulation by the owner, operator, manager, or other person having control of such area.

#### **ENFORCEMENT**

- A. Enforcement of this article shall be implemented by the Mid-Ohio Valley Health Officer, or his or her designee.
- B. Notice of the provisions set forth in this article shall be given to all applicants for a business license in the Counties of Calhoun, Pleasants, Ritchie, Roane, Wirt and Wood.
- C. Any citizen who desires to register a complaint under this chapter may initiate enforcement with the Mid-Ohio Valley Health Department.
- D. The Health Department shall, while an establishment is undergoing otherwise mandated inspections, inspect for compliance of this ordinance.
- E. Any owner, manager, operator or employee of any establishment regulated by this article shall inform persons violating this article of the appropriate provisions thereof.

#### **NON-RETALIATION**

No person or employer shall discharge, refuse to hire or in any manner retaliate against any employee, applicant for employment or member of the public because such person exercises any rights afforded by this Regulation. An employee must be 18 to work in a designated smoking area.

#### **VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES**

- A. Willful violation of this Clean Indoor Air Regulation is an unlawful act. Any person who owns, manages, operates or otherwise controls the use of a premise shall commit a willful violation if they:
  - (1) Knowingly permit smoking on a premises subject to their control in an area where smoking is prohibited by the provisions of this clean indoor air regulation, or
  - (2) Knowingly violate any other provision of this clean indoor air regulation.

#### B. Penalties:

The Board of Health may, at its option, seek civil relief and/or file a misdemeanor complaint under W.VA. Code 16-2-15 against any person who willfully violates this clean indoor air regulation.

Enforcement through civil process, includes, but is not limited to a petition for injunctive relief.

Any person who willfully violates this clean indoor air regulation, may be charged with a misdemeanor under W.Va. Code 16-2-15 and, upon conviction, be subject to a monetary fine. At the time of the adoption of this Clean Indoor Air Regulation, West Virginia Code 16-2-15 provided as follows.

## Chapter 16-2-15. Obstructing local health officers and others in the enforcement of public health laws; other violations, penalties.

Any person who willfully obstructs any local health officer, public health nurse, sanitarian or any other person charged with the enforcement of any public health law, in the performance of that person's legal duties in enforcing the law, is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine of not less than fifty dollars and not more than five hundred dollars.

Any person who willfully violates any of the provisions of this article, or any of the rules or orders adopted or issued pursuant to the provisions, for which a penalty is not otherwise provided, is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine of not less than two hundred dollars and not more than one thousand dollars.

Magistrates have concurrent jurisdiction with the circuit courts of this state for violations of provisions of this article.

#### **Public Education**

The Mid-Ohio Valley Health Department shall engage in a continuing program to explain and clarify the purposes and requirements of this ordinance to citizens affected by it, and to guide owners, operators and managers in their compliance with it. Such program may include publication of a brochure for affected businesses and individuals explaining the provisions of this ordinance.

#### OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS

This regulation shall not be interpreted or construed to permit smoking where it is otherwise restricted by other applicable federal, state, or local law or ordinance.

#### **SEVERABILITY**

If any portion of this regulation, or the application thereof, shall be held invalid, the other provisions of this regulation shall not be affected, and to this end the provisions of this regulation are declared to be severable.

#### **Effective Date**

This article shall become effective 10/1/2005.

Adopted by the Mid-Ohio Valley Board of Health July 26, 2005